

CALIFORNIA POLYTECHNIC STATE UNIVERSITY San Luis Obispo, California 93407 ACADEMIC SENATE

MEETING OF THE ACADEMIC SENATE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE Tuesday, April 22, 2008 01-409, 3:10 to 5:00pm

		01 103,0110 to 0100 pm
3:10	I.	Minutes: Approval of minutes for Executive Committee meetings of April 1 and April 8, 2008 (pp. 2-7).
	Π.	Communications and Announcements:
3:15	III.	Reports: A. Academic Senate Chair: B. President's Office: C. Provost: D. Statewide Senate: E. CFA Campus President: F. ASI Representative: G. Caucus Chairs: H. Other: Frank Vuotto, chair of Budget & Long-Range Planning Committee: committee report.
3:45	V.	 IV. Consent Agenda: Business Item(s): A. Academic Senate and University committee vacancies: (pp. 8-11). B. Approval of remaining caucus chairs for 2008-2009 (CAED, OCOB, and CLA): [please bring names to the meeting]. C. Approval of committee chairs to Academic Senate committees: (p. 12). D. Approval of Academic Senate Calendar of Meetings: (p. 13). E. Resolution on Changes to the Bylaws of the Academic Senate: Executive Committee (pp. 14-39).
	VI.	Discussion Item(s): A. Additional bylaw changes for possible inclusion to the "Resolution on Changes to the Bylaws of the Academic Senate" (pp. 40-42). B. Effective shared governance: (pp. 43-51).

5:00

VII.

Adjournment:

CALIFORNIA POLYTECHNIC STATE UNIVERSITY San Luis Obispo, California 93407 ACADEMIC SENATE

MINUTES OF The Academic Senate Executive Committee Tuesday, April 1, 2008 01-409, 3:10-5:00 p.m.

Preparatory: The meeting was called to order at 3:15 p.m.

- I. Minutes: The minutes of February 19 and February 26 were approved as presented.
- II. Communications and Announcements: Giberti announced that President Baker has approved the Resolution Abolishing the Academic Senate Library Committee, the Resolution on new Masters of Science Degree in Biomedical Engineering, and the Resolution on Diversity Learning Objectives.

III. Reports:

- A. Academic Senate Chair: Giberti announced that Chair-Elect John Soares will undertake some Academic Senate Chair responsibilities this quarter.
- B. President's Office: none.
- C. Provost: David Conn, Vice Provost for Academic Programs, mentioned that Provost Durgin has requested a deeper look at the allocation of assigned time in anticipation of the budget crunch.
- D. Statewide Senate: none.
- E. CFA Campus President: Saenz announced that CFA and CSU continue to work together on the alliance campaign, which asks the legislature to reconsider planned budget cuts.
- F. ASI Representative: Souza announced that the Rec Center Expansion passed with 75% of students approving a fee increase of \$65 per quarter, which is to be implemented when the renovated facility is complete.
- G. Caucus Chairs: none.
- H. Other: Hannings reported on the campus implementation of a continuous curriculum review process. Further details will be available at the April 15 Academic Senate meeting.
- III. Consent Agenda: Chem 101 was approved as a new course.
- IV. Business Items:

- A. Resolution on New Masters of Science Degree in Polymers and Coatings Science (Curriculum Committee): Hannings presented the resolution, which endorses the approval of a Masters of Science in Polymers and Coatings Science. M/S/P to agendize the resolution.
- B. Academic Senate and University committee vacancies: The following Academic Senate appointments were made:

College of Agriculture, Food and Environmental Sciences

Fairness Board Matthew Burd, Animal Science Grants Review Committee Phillip Tong, Dairy Science

College of Architecture and Environmental Design

Budget and Long Range Planning Margarita Hill, Landscape Architecture
Fairness Board Craig Baltimore, Architectural Engineering
Research & Professional Development Vicente Del Rio, City & Regional Planning

Orfalea College of Business

CurriculumDan Villegas, Economics AreaFaculty AffairsJohn Dobson, Finance AreaGrants ReviewKen Griggs, Management AreaSustainabilityKate Lancaster, Accounting Area

College of Education

Faculty Affairs
Grants Review
Anita Hernandez, Graduate Studies
Jim Gentilucci, Graduate Studies
Research & Professional Development
Steve Kane, Graduate Studies

College of Engineering

Sustainability David Braun, Electrical Engineering

College of Liberal Arts

Budget and Long Range Planning
Distinguished Scholarship Award
Faculty Affairs

Kevin Cooper, Graphic Communication
Ken Macro, Graphic Communication
Manzar Foroohar, History

Research & Professional Development Dustin Stegner, English

Sustainability Xiaoyin Rong, Graphic Communication

College of Science and Mathematics

Grants Review Tony Garcia, Physics

Professional Consultative Services

Faculty Affairs Navjit Brar, Library
Research & Professional Development Marisa Ramirez, Library

- C. Approval of caucus chairs for 2008-2009: This item will be addressed at the April 8 meeting.
- D. Approval of nominations to GE Committee: The following GE recommendations were made:

GE Area A/C: Don Choi from Architecture and Paul Marchbanks from English

GE Area B/F: Fred DePiero from Engineering

GE Area D: Chip Appel from Earth & Soil Sciences, John Oriji from History, and Tom Trice from History

GE Governance Committee: Margarita Hill from Architecture, Andrew Morris from History, and Peggy Rice from Mathematics

- E. Approval of assigned time for 2008-2009: <u>This item will be addressed at the April 8 meeting.</u>
- F. Resolution on WU grade: This item will be addressed at the April 8 meeting.
- G. Resolution on Changes to the Bylaws of the Academic Senate: <u>This item will be addressed at the April 8 meeting.</u>
- H. Resolution on Faculty Objections to Proposed Project to Implement Engineering Program in Jubail, Saudi Arabia: <u>Due to the lack of time</u>, this item was not discussed.

V. Discussion Items:

- A. Additional Bylaw changes for possible inclusion with the proposed Resolution on Changes to the *Bylaws of the Academic Senate*: Due to the lack of time, this item was not discussed.
- VII. Adjournment: The meeting was adjourned at 5:00 p.m.

Submitted by,

Gladys Gregory Academic Senate

CALIFORNIA POLYTECHNIC STATE UNIVERSITY San Luis Obispo, California 93407 ACADEMIC SENATE

MINUTES OF

The Academic Senate Executive Committee Tuesday, April 8, 2008 – continuation of April 1, 2008 01-409, 3:10-5:00 p.m.

Preparatory: The meeting was called to order at 3:15 p.m.

- I. Minutes: none.
- II. Communications and Announcements: none.
- III. Reports:

Provost: Durgin stated that the state of the budget is still of critical and important concern for Cal Poly and the CSU. The protection under academic freedom applies to provosts and anyone who enjoys retreat rights. Giberti has suggested that all policies, older than 6 years, be reconsidered for completeness and appropriateness. In the College of Engineering, the development of curriculum is seemed as scholarly work. The Senate has resolved to support the academic freedom of the faculty as stated in the AAUP.

- IV. Consent Agenda: none.
- V. Business Items:
 - B. Academic Senate and University committee vacancies: The following appointments were made:

College of Business

Distinguished Scholarship Award
Instruction Committee

Colette Frayne, Management Area
Kevin Lertwachara, Management Area

College of Engineering

Instruction Committee Xiaomin Jin, Electrical Engineering

College of Science and Mathematics

Sustainability Committee Robert Echols, Physics

UNIVERSITY COMMITTEES

Academic Advising Council Cynthia Moyer, NRM

Academic Council for International Programs

Accommodation Review Board

James Keese, Social Sciences

Kevin Traylor, Kinesiology

ASI Board of Directors

Jim LoCascio, Mechanical Engineering
Katie McCormick, Art & Design

Athletics Governing Board Katie McCormick, Art & Design Cal Poly Housing Corporation Board Jonathan Reich, Architecture

Campus Safety and Risk Management Committee

Jerome Breitenbach, Electrical Engineering

CAP Ad Hoc Editorial Coordination and Review Committee

Bryan Mealy, Electrical Engineering

Committee on University Citizenship

Deans' Admissions Advisory Committee Disability Access and Compliance Committee

Health Services Oversight Committee

Information Resource Management Policy and Planning Committee

Intellectual Property Review Committee

Student Health Advisory Committee

Students with Disabilities Advisory Committee

Sustainability Advisory Committee

University Diversity Enhancement Council

University Union Advisory Board

Saeed Niku, Mechanical Engineering

Camille O'Bryant, Kinesiology

Dean Arakaki, Electrical Engineering

John Harris, NRM

Samuel Frame, Statistics

James Sena, Management Area Bing Anderson, Finance Area

Bruce Golden, Dairy Sciences Clark Turner, Computer Science

Samuel Frame, Statistics

Kevin Taylor, Kinesiology

Bryan Mealy, Electrical Engineering

Bruno Giberti, Architecture

Brian Kennelly, Modern Languages & Lit.

C. Approval of caucus chairs for 2008-2009: The following were approved:

College of Agriculture, Food and Environmental Sciences

Dave Hannings, Horticulture & Crop Science

Professional Consultative Services

Johanna Brown, Library

College of Science and Mathematics

Jonathan Shapiro, Mathematics

College of Education

Shirley Magnusson, Teacher Education

College of Engineering

Stephen Klisch, Mechanical Engineering

E. Approval of assigned time for 2008-2009:

> Giberti recommended that the Executive Committee authorize the allocation of release time but that it be granted based on the senate chair's recommendation and on negotiations with the committee chairs. M/S/P motion to allocate release time with the premise that next year chair will negotiate with committee chairs and allocate as needed with the Executive Committee's approval.

- F. Resolution on WU grade (Instruction Committee): Schaffner presented the resolution, which requests that AS-449-95/IC Resolution on "U" Grades be repealed and that all grade definitions be disseminated quarterly and be easily available to all faculty. M/S/P to agendize the resolution.
- G. Resolution on Changes to the Bylaws of the Academic Senate (Executive Committee): Giberti presented the resolution, which requests the approval of changes to the Bylaws of the Academic Senate. M/S/P to agendize the resolution as follows.

section page change recommended

10 IV.A.1.f

"and there is not time to elect a replacement" removed because of redundancy. Procedures for replacing a CSU academic senator are stated

in VII.B.5.

10 IV.A.1.g "The Chair shall also transmit all official actions of the Academic Senate

to the President of the University" removed because this is a function of

the Senate office, not a duty of the Chair.

- 10 IV.A.4 Past Chair, if available, becomes the parliamentarian for Executive Committee and Senate meeting.
- H. Resolution on Faculty Objections to Proposed Project to Implement Engineering Program in Jubail, Saudi Arabia: Hood presented the resolution, which requests that the Academic Senate of Cal Poly recommend to the President and Provost that Cal Poly not proceed with this project. M/S/F to agendize the resolution.

VI. Discussion Items:

- A. Additional Bylaw changes for possible inclusion to the "Resolution on Changes to the *Bylaws of the Academic Senate*": Due to lack of time, this item was not discussed.
- VII. Adjournment: The meeting was adjourned at 5:00 p.m.

Submitted by,

Gladys Gregory

Academic Senate

Statements of Interest Received for ACADEMIC SENATE COMMITTEE VACANCIES FOR 2008-2010

COLLEGE OF AGRICULTURE, FOOD AND ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCE

Instruction Committee

COLLEGE OF ARCHITECTURE AND ENVIRONMENTAL DESIGN

Curriculum Committee

Dong, Kevin - Architectural Engineering

I have been a curriculum committee member at the departmental and university level for the past six years and would like to be a part of the university committee to help contribute at the next level of curriculum development.

Distinguished Teaching Award

Faculty Affairs Committee (2008-2009)

Sustainability Committee (2008-2009)

ORFALEA COLLEGE OF BUSINESS

Budget and Long Range Planning Committee

Danes, Jeffrey - Marketing Area

I have an interest in serving on the Long Range Planning Committee. I have been on the faculty since 1986, have seen many exciting changes, and I believe that I will be a positive influence on the future of Cal Poly.

COLLEGE OF EDUCATION

Distinguished Scholarship Award

Fairness Board

COLLEGE OF ENGINEERING

Distinguished Teaching Award

* Willing to chair if release time were available

COLLEGE OF LIBERAL ARTS

Curriculum Committee

Distinguished Teaching Award

Instruction Committee

Havandjian, Nishan - Journalism I would like to serve on the senate instruction committee. Have long term commitment to teaching and fostering knowledge among students.

COLLEGE OF SCIENCE AND MATHEMATICS

Budget and Long Range Planning Committee

Distinguished Scholarship Award

PROFESSIONAL CONSULTATIVE SERVICES

Fairness Board

^{*} Willing to chair if release time were available

DISTINGUISHED TEACHING AWARD COMMITTEE

The Distinguished Teaching Award Committee shall be composed of five General Faculty members from different colleges, when possible, and two students.

CONTINUING MEMBER

CBUS

Mike Geringer

Management Area

NOMINATIONS RECEIVED – need to select 4 members

CAFES

Tom Ruehr

Earth and Soil Sciences (Incumbent)

I have served on the committee at various times since I received the award in 1980. I have a memory to share about unique problems the committee sometimes encounters. I can only serve for 3 more years and will be happy to continue until I complete my University service.

CSM

Dave Keeling

Chemistry and Biochemistry

I will begin FERPing next fall, but plan to teach half time in Fall, Winter, and Spring quarters. I should have an easier time making classroom visitation than in the past (1998, 1999, 2003, and 2004).

CSM

Matt Moelter

Physics

I am interested in being a member of the Distinguished Teaching Award Committee. As a previous recipient I know what an honor it is to be recognized by the combination of students and faculty. I appreciated the time and energy put in by the committee members to review the nominations and make class visits. I am interested in seeing firsthand the variety of excellent teaching here at Cal Poly. Serving on the committee would be informative and satisfying as I helped to identify and recognize worthy colleagues.

CBUS

Lee Burgunder

Accounting Area (Incumbent)

I would be pleased to serve on the DTA Committee next year. I have served on this committee several times in the past, and have always found the experience rewarding, despite the very heavy time commitments. I have always enjoyed working with faculty colleagues and students on this committee, since they consistently have all had a special desire to achieve a defined goal with eagerness and integrity. I have enjoyed having the opportunity to observe the diverse ways that teachers may establish effective learning environments in a wide variety of disciplines. I also have improved my own teaching performance through my exposure to so many innovative educators. For these reasons, I appreciate the opportunity to possibly serve on the committee again.

^{*} Willing to chair if release time were available

04.14.08

UNIVERSITY COMMITTEES 2008-2009 Vacancies

ADVISORY COMMITTEE ON WORKPLACE VIOLENCE - 1 Vacancy

CAL POLY PLAN STEERING COMMITTEE - 2 Vacancies

CAMPUS FEE ADVISORY COMMITTEE - 1 Vacancy

CAMPUS PLANNING COMMITTEE - 1 Vacancy

COORDINATING COMMITTEE ON AIDS AND HIV INFECTION - 1 Vacancy

INTERNATIONAL EDUCATION AND PROGRAMS (IEP) COUNCIL - 1 Vacancy

D'Avignon, India [Lecturer/1.5 years at Cal Poly] - Music

I am in my second year as a lecturer in the music department after having served since 1980 in the Conservatory of Music at Capital University in Columbus, Ohio. At this institution I reached full professor with tenure, was chair of my department for 17 years, was elected chair of the undergraduate faculty, served in the senate, chaired the academic affairs committee of the university, and chaired the faculty affairs committee of the Conservatory, to name a few. During this time, I was awarded three Lilly grants for travel and study (and recruitment) to Japan, Taiwan and Bali. I was also chair of the local Phi Beta Delta Chapter and was elected International President for the years 2003-2006 where I made monthly trips to PBD headquarters in Washington, D.C. to direct policy in furthering internationalism on college campuses. During this time, we inducted David Kay from the Potomac Institute and Colin Powell, and I secured French Ambassador Jean-David Levitte for our conference speaker.

At Capital University, I was the advisor for international students in the Conservatory, was instrumental in securing the first annual four-year full tuition scholarship specifically for international students auditioning for the Conservatory, and worked with faculty to understand the needs of internationals students. I worked on a regular basis with our international office to establish procedures for admitting international students to the Conservatory. I compiled a folder of materials and letters that proved 100% successful in our Chinese students receiving their visas to study on our campus. During my year and a half at Cal Poly, I have worked with our university symphony director in securing Chinese pianist Tianshu Wang to perform the Yellow River Concerto (the most popular and famous piano concerto written in China) in the spring of 2009. We are also starting negotiations with instrumental faculty of the Shenyang Conservatory to visit during that same time to perform on original Chinese instruments for students here at Cal Poly. I have contacted colleagues in the engineering department who have expressed an interest of involvement in some way. I am also interested in exploring the possibility of strengthening (or resurrecting) the Phi Beta Delta chapter here at Cal Poly. I am a staunch supporter of international activities for faculty, staff, and our domestic students as well as finding ways for international students to benefit from educational experience here on our campuses. The more we experience first-hand and know of other cultures, the better we understand and hopefully appreciate the uniqueness. I would be honored to serve in any way in promoting international activities here at Cal Poly.

Rong, Xiaoying [Tenure track/3 years at Cal Poly] – Graphic Communication
I have been working with university's International Study Program for student interviews for couple times. These interviews gave me the opportunity of learning the CSU International Study Program. At the same time, I am planning to give my students international exposure by taking them for extended field trip to China in the coming summer. I believe that as I am an international scholar, I have better understanding of what international study can bring to the students and faculty. I am willing to serve in IEP council to share my experience and idea.

Possible 2008-2009 Committee Chairs

Committee	Chair 07-08	Chair Since	Willing to Chair 08-09	Committee Member	College/Department
Budget and Long-Range Planning Committee	Frank Vuotto	2007-2008			
Curriculum Committee	Dave Hannings	2006-2007	Dave Hannings	No	CAFES/Horticulture and Crop Science
Distinguished Scholarship Awards Committee	Don Choi	2005-2006	Don Choi	Yes	CAED/Architecture
Distinguished Teaching Awards Committee	Mike Geringer	2003-2004	Mike Geringer	Yes	OCOB/Management Area
Faculty Affairs Committee	Manzar Foroohar	2002-2003	Manzar Foroohar	Yes	CLA/History
Fairness Board	Craig Baltimore	2007-2008	Craig Baltimore	Yes	CAED/Architectural Engineering
Grants Review Committee	Ken Griggs	2006-2007	Ken Griggs	Yes	OCOB/Management Area
Instruction Committee	Andrew Schaffner	2004-2005			CSM/Statistics
Research and Professional Development Committee	Bill Plummer	2006-2007	Bill Plummer	Yes	CAFES/Animal Science
Sustainability Committee	Kate Lancaster	2007-2008	Kate Lancaster	Yes	OCOB/Accounting Area

04.02.08

Academic Senate Calendar of Meetings For 2008-2009

All Executive Committee meetings are held in 01-409 from 3:00 to 5:00pm unless otherwise noted. All Academic Senate meetings are held in UU220 unless otherwise noted.

DATE	MEETING
September 19, 2008 (1:00 to 5:30pm, UU220)	Academic Senate Retreat
September 23	Executive Committee
October 7	Academic Senate
October 14	Executive Committee
October 28	Academic Senate
November 4	Executive Committee
November 18	Academic Senate
December 2	Academic Senate (if needed)
December 8 – January 4, 2009	Finals Week and Quarter Break
January 6	Executive Committee
January 20	Academic Senate
January 27	Executive Committee
February 10	Academic Senate
February 17	Executive Committee
February 24	Executive Committee (if needed)
March 3	Academic Senate
March 10	Academic Senate (if needed)
March 16 – March 29, 2009	Finals Week and Quarter Break
April 7	Executive Committee
April 14	Academic Senate
April 21	Executive Committee
May 5	Academic Senate
May 12	Executive Committee
May 19	Executive Committee (if needed)
May 26	Academic Senate
June 2	Academic Senate (if needed)
June 8 – June 21, 2009	Finals Week and Quarter Break

Adopted:

ACADEMIC SENATE of CALIFORNIA POLYTECHNIC STATE UNIVERSITY San Luis Obispo, CA

AS-___-08

RESOLUTION ON CHANGES TO THE BYLAWS OF THE ACADEMIC SENATE

1 RESOLVED: That the Academic Senate of Cal Poly approve the attached changes to the Bylaws 2 of the Academic Senate.

Proposed by: Academic Senate Executive Committee

February 12, 2008 Date: Revised:

April 14, 2008

CHANGES TO THE BYLAWS OF THE ACADEMIC SENATE

[items highlighted in blue were agendized at the 2.19.08 and 4.8.08 ExecCom meetings]

	page	section	change recommended
1)	4	I.B.2	grade point average for ASI representatives changed from 2.0 to 3.0 2.3 .
2)	5	II,A.1	"Elected members shall be voting members" removed because of redundancy. Voting status is stated in the Constitution.
3)	5	II.A.2	"shall be nonvoting" removed because of redundancy. Ex officio nonvoting status is stated in the <i>Constitution</i> .
4)	7,8	III.B	Changes to the election procedures are in keeping with current practices.
5)	9	IV.A.1	Duties of Chair have been itemized.
6)	9	IV.A.1.c	Added duty of Chair to "meet with the President and Provost [and Deans Council] on a regular basis."
7)	9.	IV.A.1.d	Added duty of Chair to "prepare an annual list of charges for Academic Senate committees [and] meet with each committee or committee chair at the beginning of the academic year."
8)	10	IV.A.1.e	Appointment of parliamentarian is eliminated. See IV.A.4: Past Academic Chair becomes the parliamentarian.
9)	10	IV.A.1.f	"and there is not time to elect a replacement" removed because of redundancy. Procedures for replacing a CSU academic senator are stated in VII.B.5.
10)	10	IV.A.1.g	"The Chair shall also transmit all official actions of the Academic Senate to the President of the University" removed because this is a function of the Senate office, not a duty of the Chair.
11)	10	IV.A.4	Past Chair, if available, becomes the parliamentarian for Executive Committee and Senate meetings.
12)	12	VII.A.	Slight wording change to specify "caucus chair" membership to the Executive Committee.
13)	12	VII.A.	The two student representatives to the Academic Senate are added to the Executive Committee as voting members.

14)	12	VII.B.1	"Setting the agenda" replaced with "agendizing resolutions" for clarification.
15)	12	VIII.A	"Executive Committee" added for clarification.
16)	12,13	VIII.B	Changes made in general membership of Academic Senate committees: Chair becomes ex officio member of all committees; faculty emeriti member eliminated.
17)	13	VIII.B	"Terms shall be staggered to ensure continuity" added to conform to current practices.
18)	13	VIII.C	Duties of committee chairs have been itemized.
19)	13	VIII.C.5	These responsibilities of the committee chair have been modified to conform to current practices.
20)	13	VIII.C.7	Wording change re annual meeting between committee chairs and Academic Senate Chair made to conform to current practices.
21)	14	VIII.D.7&8	Two operating procedures added for Academic Senate committees.
22)	14	VIII.I.1.a	Budget Officer or designee removed from membership of Budget and Long-Range Planning Committee.
23)	15	VIII.I.2.a	Wording change re membership of the Curriculum Committee made for clarity.
24)	15	VIII.I.2.b	Changes made in responsibilities of the Curriculum Committee.
25)	15,16	VIII.I.2.b	Changes made in the membership and procedures of the U.S. Cultural Pluralism Subcommittee.
26)	16	VIII.I.3.a&b	Changes made in the membership and responsibilities of the Distinguished Scholarship Awards Committee.
27)	16,17	VIII.I.4.a&b	Changes made in the membership and responsibilities of the Distinguished Teaching Awards Committee.
28)	17,18	VIII.I.7.a	Changes made in the membership of the Grants Review Committee.
29)	19	VIII.I.8.b	Change made in responsibilities of the Instruction Committee eliminating "The chair of the Instruction Committee shall meet regularly with the chair of the Curriculum Committee and the Chair of the Academic Senate."
30)	19	VIII.I.10.a&b	Changes made in the membership and responsibilities of the Research and Professional Development Committee.

April 14, 2008

CALIFORNIA POLYTECHNIC STATE UNIVERSITY San Luis Obispo, California 93407

CONSTITUTION OF THE FACULTY and the BYLAWS OF THE ACADEMIC SENATE

Table of Contents

CONSTITUTION OF THE FACULTY				
Preamble				
ARTICLE I.	MEMBERSHIP OF THE GENERAL FACULTY			
ARTICLE II. Section 1. Section 2.	RIGHTS, RESPONSIBILITIES, AND POWERS OF THE GENERAL FACULTY Rights of the General Faculty			
Section 3.	Powers of the General Faculty: Meetings, Initiatives, Referenda, and Recall			
ARTICLE III. Section 1.	THE ACADEMIC SENATE			
Section 2.	Powers and Responsibilities of the Academic Senate			
Section 3. Section 4.	Officers			
ARTICLE IV.				
BYLAWS OF TH	IE ACADEMIC SENATE			
I. INTROD	UCTION			
A.	CONSULTATIVE PROCEDURES			
B.	DEFINITIONS			
II. MEMBEI	RSHIP OF THE ACADEMIC SENATE			
A.	ELIGIBILITY			
В.	TERMS OF OFFICE			
C.	REPRESENTATION			
D.	SUBSTITUTES			
E.	PROXIES			
F.	AUTOMATIC RESIGNATIONS			
III. ELECTIC	ON PROCEDURES			
A.	GENERAL PROCEDURES			

В.	ELECTION CALENDAR	7
IV.	OFFICERS	9
A.	OFFICERS	9
В.	ELIGIBILITY	10
C.	TERMS OF OFFICE	
D.	REPLACEMENT	10
V.	MEETINGS	10
A.	REGULAR MEETINGS	
B.	SPECIAL MEETINGS	11
C.	PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY	11
VI.	SUMMER OPERATION	11
A.	MEETINGS	11
B.	RESPONSIBILITIES	11
VII.	EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE	12
A.	MEMBERSHIP	12
B.	FUNCTIONS	12
VIII.	COMMITTEES	12
A.	GENERAL	12
B.	MEMBERSHIP	12
C.	COMMITTEE CHAIRS	13
D.	OPERATING PROCEDURES	13
E.	MEETINGS	14
F.	REPORTING	14
G.	MINORITY REPORTS	14
H.	COMMITTEES	14
I.	COMMITTEE DESCRIPTIONS	14
IX.	RECALL OF ELECTED REPRESENTATIVES	19
A.	APPLICATION	19
B.	PROCEDURES	20
Y	AMENDMENTS TO THE BVI AWS	21

CONSTITUTION OF THE FACULTY

Preamble

We, the faculty of California Polytechnic State University, San Luis Obispo, in order to meet our academic responsibilities hereby establish this *Constitution of the Faculty* for our governance. The responsibilities of the faculty, the powers necessary to fulfill those responsibilities, and the collegial form of governance are based on historic academic traditions that have been recognized by the people of the State of California through their legislature.

ARTICLE I. MEMBERSHIP OF THE GENERAL FACULTY

Voting members of the General Faculty of Cal Poly shall consist of those persons who are employed at Cal Poly and belong to at least one of the following entities: (1) full-time academic employees holding faculty rank whose principal duty is within an academic department, unit, or program; (2) faculty members in the Pre-Retirement Reduction in Time Base Program; (3) full-time probationary and/or permanent employees in Professional Consultative Services as defined in Article III.1.b of this constitution; (4) full-time coaches holding a current faculty appointment of at least one year; (5) lecturers holding full-time appointments of at least one year in one or more academic departments, units, or programs; or (6) lecturers with a current assignment of 15 WTUs for at least three consecutive quarters.

Members of the General Faculty, including department chairs/heads, shall not cease to be members because of any assigned time allotted to them for the carrying out of duties consistent with their employment at Cal Poly. "Visiting Personnel" shall not be members of the General Faculty. Members of the General Faculty who are on leave for at least one year shall not be voting members during their leave.

Nonvoting membership in the General Faculty shall consist of all academic personnel not included in the voting membership.

ARTICLE II. RIGHTS, RESPONSIBILITIES, AND POWERS OF THE GENERAL FACULTY

Section 1. Rights of the General Faculty

The right of academic freedom is necessary for the pursuit and dissemination of truth and the maintenance of a free society. It is the obligation of the General Faculty to insure the preservation of an academic community with full freedom of inquiry and expression and insulation from political influence.

Voting members of the General Faculty have the right to nominate, elect, and recall members of the Academic Senate and the right to call for, participate in, and vote at meetings of the General Faculty.

Section 2. Responsibilities of the General Faculty

The primary responsibility of members of the General Faculty is to seek truth and to encourage the free pursuit of learning in their peers and students. To this end, they devote their energies to developing and improving their scholarly competence. They make every reasonable effort to foster honest academic conduct and to assure that their evaluation of students and peers reflects true merit. They respect the confidential nature of the relationship between professor and student. They avoid any exploitation of students for their private advantage, acknowledge significant assistance from them, and protect their freedom of inquiry.

Section 3. Powers of the General Faculty: Meetings, Initiatives, Referenda, and Recall

No regularly scheduled meetings of the General Faculty are provided for but meetings of the General Faculty may be called by the University President or the Academic Senate Chair. Meetings of the General Faculty will be scheduled by the Academic Senate Chair upon receipt of a meeting request petition bearing the signatures of 10% of the voting membership of the General Faculty. The Academic Senate Chair presides at meetings of the General Faculty and parliamentary procedure is in effect. Positions developed at meetings of the General Faculty must be ratified by initiative.

A majority of the voting members of the General Faculty in attendance at duly called General Faculty meetings is needed to propose an initiative to be put before the entire voting membership of the General Faculty. A majority of those voting in a mail ballot is needed to pass an initiative. Initiatives to amend this constitution shall be governed by Article IV.

Actions of the Academic Senate are subject to nullification by the voting membership of the General Faculty. Upon receipt of a referendum petition bearing the signatures of 15% of the voting faculty constituency, the Academic Senate Chair will conduct a mail ballot of the voting members of the General Faculty. A majority of those voting on a referendum is required to nullify the Academic Senate action in question. Recall of academic senators shall be provided for in the *Bylaws of the Academic Senate*.

ARTICLE III. THE ACADEMIC SENATE

Section 1. Membership

- (a) Colleges with fewer than 30 faculty members shall elect two senators. All other colleges shall elect three senators, plus one senator for each 30 faculty members or major fraction thereof.
- (b) Designated personnel in Professional Consultative Services (excepting directors) shall be represented in the Academic Senate by the formula of one senator per each fifteen members, or major fraction thereof:
 - (1) Full-time probationary or permanent Librarians; and
 - (2) Full-time probationary or permanent (a) counselors; (b) student services professionals [SSPs] I-, II-, and III-academically related; (c) SSPs III and IV; (d) Cooperative Education lecturers; and (e) physicians.
 - (3) Full-time coaches holding a current faculty appointment of at least one year.
- (c) Part-time lecturers in an academic department/teaching area and part-time employees in Professional Consultative Services, other than those who are members of the General Faculty as defined in Article I, will be represented by one voting member in the Senate.
- (d) Senators acting in an at-large capacity are the immediate Past Academic Senate Chair and the CSU academic senators.
- (e) Ex officio, nonvoting members are (1) the President of the University or designee, (2) the Provost/Vice President for Academic Affairs or designee,
 (3) one representative from among the academic deans, (4) the ASI

President and Executive Vice President of ASI or designees Chair of ASI Board of Directors, and (5) the Vice President for Student Affairs.

Section 2. Powers and Responsibilities of the Academic Senate

Joint decision making and consultation between the administration and the General Faculty have been recognized by the legislature of the State of California as the long accepted manner of governing institutions of higher learning and are essential to the educational missions of such institutions. In order to participate fully in the process of joint decision making and consultation with the administration, the Academic Senate is empowered to exercise all legislative and advisory powers on behalf of the General Faculty. These legislative powers shall include all educational matters that affect the General Faculty (e.g., curricula, academic personnel policies, and academic standards). Advisory powers shall include, but not be limited to consultation on budget policy, administrative appointments, determination of campus administrative policy, University organization, and facilities use and planning.

It is the responsibility of the Academic Senate to respond to requests for legislative action or advice from the President within sixty days of the receipt of such requests. On those occasions when the President disapproves Senate legislation, s/he shall inform the Senate in writing within sixty days from the date of transmittal of the compelling reasons for disapproval. The President shall inform the Senate of the disposition of such matters upon which the Academic Senate has performed in its advisory capacity.

The Academic Senate has the right to present to the Chancellor or the Board of Trustees of the CSU any matter pertaining to the conduct and welfare of the University. The Academic Senate, through its chairperson, is empowered to express the sentiments of the General Faculty.

The Academic Senate is empowered to adopt bylaws for its governance.

Section 3. Officers

The officers of the Academic Senate are a Chair, a Vice Chair, and a Secretary as provided for in the bylaws.

Section 4. Organization

The Academic Senate shall function through its standing and ad hoc committees as well as through floor discussion and debate. Enumeration of the committees and their responsibilities is specified in the bylaws. Meetings of the Academic Senate and its committees shall be called and conducted as specified in the *Bylaws of the Academic Senate*. 50% plus one member of the Academic Senate membership constitutes a quorum.

ARTICLE IV. AMENDMENTS

Amendments to this constitution may be proposed by initiative in a meeting of the General Faculty (Article II, Section 3) or by resolution of the Academic Senate by a two-thirds majority of those present and voting.

Amendments to this constitution shall be adopted by a two-thirds majority of the votes cast by the voting members of the General Faculty. A referendum to amend this constitution shall be administered by the Academic Senate Chair within 45 days of the receipt of a duly submitted proposal.

BYLAWS OF THE ACADEMIC SENATE

I. INTRODUCTION

A. CONSULTATIVE PROCEDURES

- 1. Consultative procedures to be used by the Academic Senate must guarantee full participation by the faculty in the formulation of policies and procedures affecting academic governance.
- 2. The consultative process must provide adequate time for collection and dissemination of information, discussion, and formulation of recommendations.
- 3. Recommendations from the Senate shall normally be submitted to the President. Actions taken by the President in response shall be reported to the Senate.
- 4. In accordance with procedures specified for particular committees in these bylaws, committee recommendations shall be reported to the Academic Senate.
- 5. Any appointee of the Executive Committee, or of the Academic Senate Chair, to any committee not specified in these bylaws, shall report from such committee to the Academic Senate or to one of its committees.
- 6. Any senator who believes that consultative procedures on any recommendation of the Senate or of any department or of a college have not been adequate, may submit evidence in writing to the Executive Committee of the Academic Senate in support of this belief and request an investigation. The Executive Committee will make a determination as to the merit of the written evidence and then assign this matter to an appropriate committee for investigation. The committee may then make recommendations for improvement of these consultative procedures to the Academic Senate.

B. DEFINITIONS

1. Title Change

When there is a change in the title of an individual listed as an ex officio member of an Academic Senate committee, without any substantial changes in the duties of this individual, this title shall be changed in the bylaws as an editorial change and need not go through the normal procedures for amending bylaws.

2. ASI Representatives

Unless otherwise specifically stated in these bylaws, ASI representatives on committees shall be students carrying at least seven quarter units, who have completed two quarters within the previous academic year, at least 24 quarter units at Cal Poly, and who have a Cal Poly grade point average of at least $\frac{2.0}{2.0}$ 2.3.

3. Full-time Academic Employees

Full-time faculty members holding rank and occupying positions in academic departments/teaching areas in the University, full-time personnel in Professional Consultative Services (as defined in Article III.1.b of the *Constitution of the Faculty*), and full-time lecturers holding one-year appointments in academic departments/teaching areas shall be considered full-time academic employees. This

status shall not lapse because of a temporary part-time appointment to duties outside the department/teaching area.

4. Part-time Academic Employees

Part-time lecturers in academic departments/teaching areas in the University and part-time employees in Professional Consultative Services (Professional Consultative Services classifications: librarians, counselors, student service professionals I-, II-, III-academically related, student service professionals III and IV, Cooperative Education lecturers, physicians, and coaches) who are not members of the General Faculty as defined in Article I of the *Constitution of the Faculty*.

5. College Caucus

All of the senators from each college and Professional Consultative Services shall constitute the caucus for that college or Professional Consultative Services. Part-time academic employees shall not be part of any college caucus.

6. Temporary Vacancy

A vacancy caused by illness, death, resignation, retirement, sabbatical leave, jury duty, temporary administrative appointment, or other compelling reason which will last generally less than one academic year.

7. Vacant Position

A vacancy resulting from the criteria for membership specified in Article III, Section 1 of the *Constitution of the Faculty*. Vacancies shall be filled in accordance with Article III.B.7 of the *Bylaws of the Academic Senate*.

8. Voter Eligibility

Voting members of the General Faculty as specified in Article I of the constitution are eligible to vote for:

- a. Senators from colleges or Professional Consultative Services;
- b. CSU academic senators;
- c. Members to the Grants Review Committee;
- d. Consultative committees as needed.

II. MEMBERSHIP OF THE ACADEMIC SENATE

A. ELIGIBILITY

1. Elected Members

Elected members shall be full-time members of the General Faculty who have been nominated and elected in accordance with Article III of these bylaws. Elected members shall be voting members.

2. Ex Officio Members

Ex officio members shall be nonvoting as are specified in Article III.1.e of the constitution.

3. Representative of Part-time Academic Employees

A voting member of the Academic Senate representing part-time academic employees shall be elected by vote of all University part-time academic employees during fall quarter of each academic year. Such representative must have an academic year appointment in order to serve in this position.

B. TERMS OF OFFICE

The elected term of office shall be two years. A senator can serve a maximum of two consecutive, elected terms and shall not again be eligible for election until one year has elapsed. A senator appointed to fill a temporary vacancy for an elected position shall serve until the completion of that term or until the senator being temporarily replaced returns, whichever occurs first. If this temporary appointment is for one year or less, it shall not be counted as part of the two-term maximum for elected senators. The representative for part-time academic employees shall serve a one-year term with a maximum of four consecutive one-year terms.

C. REPRESENTATION

- 1. Colleges and Professional Consultative Services with an even number of senators shall elect one-half of their senators each year. Those with an odd number of senators shall not deviate from electing one-half of their senators each year by more than one senator. All of the senators from each college and Professional Consultative Services shall constitute the appropriate caucus.
- 2. When a college or Professional Consultative Services with an uneven number of senators gains a new senator due to an increase in faculty in a year when more than one-half of their senators is to be elected, the new Senate position shall be for one year for the first year, then two years thereafter.
- 3. There shall be no more than one senator per department/teaching area elected by any college where applicable until all departments/teaching areas within that college are represented. A department/teaching area shall waive its right to representation by failure to nominate. This bylaw shall have precedence over Article III.B.7 of the *Bylaws of the Academic Senate*.
- 4. Nothing in this section (Section C) shall be interpreted to affect the filling of temporary vacancies. These vacancies shall be filled as specified in Article III.B.7 of these bylaws.

D. SUBSTITUTES

When a senator must miss Senate meetings over an extended period of time (two or three consecutive meetings), the senator must notify the appropriate caucus chair of the planned absences. The caucus chair will solicit nominations for a substitute, who is eligible for election to the Senate, from the senator's college/Professional Consultative Services. The caucus will then hold an election to decide who will act as a substitute. Substitutes shall be counted in the determination of a quorum and shall have voting rights. The caucus chair will transmit, in writing, the name of the substitute and the dates that substitute will be in attendance at Academic Senate meetings to the Academic Senate office.

E. PROXIES

When a senator must miss a Senate meeting or a portion of a meeting, the senator may select a member in the same college/Professional Consultative Services who is eligible for

election to the Senate or another senator who is a member of the college/Professional Consultative Services to serve as proxy. The senator shall transmit in writing the name of the person to serve as proxy to the Academic Senate office. Proxies shall be counted in the determination of a quorum and will have the same right to vote as the senator who is absent.

F. AUTOMATIC RESIGNATIONS

Any senator missing more than two consecutive Senate meetings without a substitute or proxy shall be automatically resigned from the Senate at its regular meeting and shall be reinstated if an appeal for reinstatement is upheld by the Executive Committee of the Academic Senate.

III. <u>ELECTION PROCEDURES</u>

Elections shall be held for membership to the Academic Senate, Senate offices, Academic Senate CSU, Grants Review Committee, appropriate recall elections for the preceding as per Section IX of these bylaws, and ad hoc committees created to search for such University positions as president, provost, vice presidents, college deans, and similar type administrative positions.

A. GENERAL PROCEDURES

Balloting shall be by the "double envelope system" (outside envelope signed, inside envelope sealed and containing the voted ballot) which ensures that only eligible persons will vote and ballots will remain secret.

- 1. Time and manner of nominations and elections will be announced in a timely fashion to facilitate maximum faculty participation.
- 2. Voter and candidate eligibility shall be verified.
- 3. The Executive Committee will rule on questions as they arise and serve as an appeals body to rule on any allegations of irregularities in the nomination and election process.
- 4. Votes will be publicly tallied at an announced time and place and results of the election will be published.
- 5. Ballots will be counted only if they are properly signed and received by the announced closing date. Ballots will be retained for ten working days.
- 6. Those candidates who receive the highest number of votes shall be declared elected.
- 7. Department/teaching area representation shall have precedence in elections according to Article II.C.3 of the *Bylaws of the Academic Senate*.

B. ELECTION CALENDAR

1. During the first week of winter quarter, the Academic Senate office shall solicit nominations to fill vacancies for the next academic year. At the same time, each caucus chair shall be notified, in writing, of such vacancies. By Friday of the following week, each caucus chair shall notify the Senate office, in writing, of any discrepancies in the number of vacancies in its constituency. Accepted nominations shall include a signed statement of intent to serve from the candidate.

- Eligibility to serve shall be determined for each college and Professional Consultative Services.
- 2. Election of senators shall be conducted during the last week of January in February. Any r Runoff elections, if needed, shall be conducted the week following the conclusion of the election.
- At the first Senate meeting after the conclusion of the election, the names of all
 nominees, the dates of the elections (including a runoff, if necessary), and the time
 and place at which ballots will be counted shall be reported.
- 4. Election results shall be announced by direct or electronic mail to all departments and again at the first Senate meeting following the elections. Election results shall be announced to the campus and the Senate.
- 5. Whenever the normal election process fails to provide full membership or when a vacancy occurs:
 - (a) the caucus for the underrepresented college/Professional Consultative
 Services shall solicit nominations through direct or electronic mail contact
 to each faculty member in the college/Professional Consultative Services.
 (See department/teaching area representation requirement in Article II.C.3
 of these bylaws.) Accepted nominations shall include signed statements of
 intent to serve from the candidates.
 - (b) from the list of accepted nominations, the caucus shall select by secret ballot the nominee(s) of its choice and recommend the names(s) of the selected nominee(s) to the Executive Committee for its appointment.
 - (c) the appointed member shall serve until the end of the term of the position being filled.
- 6. The procedures and timetable for election of CSU academic senators shall be the same as that for the campus Academic Senate and Grants Review Committee, except that nomination shall be by petition of not less than ten members of the faculty and shall include a consent to serve statement signed by the nominee. [Reference VII.B.5 of these bylaws for filling of temporary vacancy for a CSU academic senator.]
- 7. Election of Academic Senate officers:
 - (a) prior to the last regularly scheduled Senate meeting of winter quarter, eligible nominees of the Senate shall be solicited for the offices of Chair, Vice Chair, and Secretary.
 - (b) a petition of nomination signed by three senators which includes a consent to serve statement signed by the nominee shall be received by the Senate office. Such petitions shall be due at the Senate office prior to the last regularly scheduled Senate meeting of winter quarter. The names of the eligible nominees shall be announced at the last regularly scheduled meeting of winter quarter.
 - (c) nominations for other eligible candidates will be received from the floor of the Senate provided that (1) at least two senators second the nominations, and (2) the nominee is present and agrees to serve if elected.

- (d) the Academic Senate Vice Chair shall conduct the election of Senate officers at the last regularly scheduled meeting of winter quarter. Officers shall be elected one at a time: first the Chair, then the Vice Chair, and finally the Secretary.
- (e) in the event of a vacancy in the offices of the Senate, an election will be conducted at the next meeting of the Senate to fill the unexpired term.
 Nominations shall be made from the floor of the Senate in compliance with subsection (c) above.
- 8. Election of representative for part-time academic employees:
 - (a) during the first weeks of fall quarter, the Academic Senate office shall solicit nominations for the position of Academic Senate representative for part-time academic employees.
 - (b) after nominations have been received, election to this position shall be conducted. A runoff election, if needed, shall be conducted the week following the conclusion of the election. Said position shall be elected by vote of all University part-time academic employees unless only one nomination to this position is received, in which case the Executive Committee of the Academic Senate shall have the authority to appoint said nominee to the position.
 - (c) the elected member shall serve until the end of the academic year.

IV. OFFICERS

A. OFFICERS

The officers shall consist of the Chair, Vice Chair, and Secretary, as specified in Article III, Section 3 of the constitution. The duties shall be as follows:

- 1. Chair
 - a. The Chair shall set agendas and conduct all meetings of the Academic Senate and Executive Committee.
 - <u>b</u>. The Chair shall serve as a representative of the Academic Senate upon call by the President of the University.
 - <u>c.</u> The Chair shall meet with the President and Provost on a regular basis and brief them on Academic Senate business. The Chair shall perform a similar function at the Deans Council.
 - d. The Chair shall prepare an annual list of charges for Academic Senate committees in consultation with the President, Provost, Executive Committee, and the committee chairs. The Chair shall meet with each committee or committee chair at the beginning of the academic year to review these charges as well as applicable bylaws and procedures.

- The chair shall appoint a parliamentarian for Academic Senate meetings.
- f. The Chair shall serve as an alternate for the Academic Senate California State University and shall attend when an elected statewide senator must miss a given meeting and there is not time to elect a replacement.
- g. The Chair shall also transmit all official actions of the Academic Senate to the President of the University.

2. Vice Chair

In the event of a permanent vacancy in the office of Chair, the Vice Chair shall succeed to the office and a replacement Vice Chair shall be elected to complete the term of office. The Vice Chair shall serve in the capacity of the Chair during her/his absence or upon the request of the Chair.

3. Secretary

The Secretary or designee shall record the minutes of all Senate and Executive Committee meetings and shall provide copies of these minutes to all senators in the case of Senate meetings and to all Executive Committee members in the case of Executive Committee meetings. The Secretary or designee shall provide written notice of meetings to the appropriate faculty and shall handle correspondence of the Academic Senate. The Secretary or designee shall create three copies of the minutes of all meetings—one for the Chair, one to be passed to the library, and one to be filed in the Academic Senate office. The Secretary shall have available at each Senate meeting a current file of the actions of the Senate and a copy of the constitution and bylaws.

4. The immediate Past Chair, if available, shall serve as parliamentarian for Executive Committee and Senate meetings.

B. ELIGIBILITY

Each officer shall be an elected member of the Academic Senate. Every candidate for Academic Senate office shall have at least one more year to serve as an elected senator. A college is permitted to provide only one officer at a time.

C. TERMS OF OFFICE

Each officer shall be elected by the voting members of the Academic Senate for a one-year term. These elections shall be held at the last regularly scheduled Senate meeting of winter quarter and term of office shall begin with the start of summer quarter. The only limitation to the number of terms that a senator may hold office are the eligibility requirements in Article II.A of these bylaws and the terms of office restrictions in Article II.B of these bylaws.

D. REPLACEMENT

The filling of temporary vacancies shall be accomplished as specified in Article III.B.7.e of these bylaws.

V. MEETINGS

A. REGULAR MEETINGS

- 1. Regular meetings of the Academic Senate shall be held at 3:00pm on Tuesdays, as needed, except in the months of July, August, and September.
- 2. The Executive Committee of the Academic Senate shall not schedule Academic Senate meetings:
 - (a) on an academic holiday;
 - (b) after the last regular day of classes during the quarter; or
 - (c) during final examinations.

B. SPECIAL MEETINGS

Special meetings may be held on call by the Academic Senate Chair or by petition of 25% of the membership of the Academic Senate.

C. PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY

Except as otherwise specified in these constitution and bylaws, the latest edition of *Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised* shall serve as the parliamentary authority for Academic Senate and Senate committee meetings.

VI. SUMMER OPERATION

A. MEETINGS

During summer quarter the Executive Committee of the Academic Senate shall meet as needed and shall act in place of the full Senate.

- 1. If any member of the Executive Committee other than the officers of the Senate will not be available during summer quarter, then the appropriate caucus shall elect an alternate to fill the vacancy during the absence. Such alternates shall be elected from the other senators of the same college or Professional Consultative Services as the person being replaced. If no such candidates are available, the caucus shall designate another person from the same college or Professional Consultative Services that qualifies for Senate membership to serve as an alternate.
- 2. If the Chair, Vice Chair, or Secretary will not be available during the summer quarter, the Senate shall, at the regular June meeting, elect an alternate officer from the Senate membership to fill the vacancy during her/his absence.

B. RESPONSIBILITIES

- 1. The Executive Committee shall act on behalf of the full Academic Senate during the summer quarter.
- 2. The usual Academic Senate representation on the President's Council and other administrative bodies shall be maintained throughout the summer quarter by the regular representative or an alternate named by the Academic Senate Chair.
- 3. At the first regular meeting of the Academic Senate in the fall quarter, the Executive Committee shall give a full report of its action during the summer quarter.

VII. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

A. MEMBERSHIP

The Executive Committee shall consist of the officers of the Senate who serve the Executive Committee in like capacity, plus one senator caucus chair from each college and one from Professional Consultative Services elected by the appropriate caucus. The CSU academic senators, the immediate Past Academic Senate Chair, the ASI President, the Chair of ASI Board of Directors, and the Provost/Vice President for Academic Affairs or designee are ex officio members. The Provost/Vice President for Academic Affairs is a nonvoting member. A quorum shall consist of a majority of the voting members.

B. FUNCTIONS

The Executive Committee shall be responsible for the following functions:

- 1. Setting the agenda Agendizing resolutions for Academic Senate meetings;
- 2. The appointment of committee members and committee chairs (pursuant to section VIII.C of these bylaws);
- 3. The directing of studies to committees and receipt of reports there from for inclusion on the agenda;
- 4. The filling of temporary vacancies in the membership of the Academic Senate in accordance with Article III.B.7 of these bylaws;
- 5. The making of nominations for a temporary vacancy for CSU academic senator. The Academic Senate shall elect a replacement to the position to be effective only until the next regular election date for members of the Senate or until the individual that vacated the position returns;
- 6. The filling of temporary vacancies in Senate office or membership of the Executive Committee except in the case of vacancies created by recall (see section IX of these bylaws);
- 7. The approving of nominations and/or appointments by the Academic Senate Chair to other official committees.

VIII. COMMITTEES

A. GENERAL

The functional integrity of the Academic Senate shall be maintained by the committee process. The committee structure shall include standing committees staffed by appointment or ex officio status, elected committees staffed by election, and ad hoc committees staffed either by appointment or election as directed by the Academic Senate Executive Committee.

B. MEMBERSHIP

Except as noted in the individual committee description, committees shall include at least one voting General Faculty representative from each college and Professional Consultative Services. The Academic Senate Chair is an ex officio member of all committees.

Additional ex officio representation may include members of Administration, ASI representatives appointed by the ASI president, the Chair of the Academic Senate, faculty

emeriti, and other representation when deemed necessary by the Senate. Ex officio members shall be voting unless otherwise specified in the committee's description.

During spring quarter, each caucus shall convene to nominate candidates from that college or Professional Consultative Services to fill committee vacancies occurring for the next academic year.

These nominations shall be taken to a meeting of the Executive Committee before the June regular meeting of the Senate. The Executive Committee shall appoint members to standing committee vacancies from these lists. Each appointed member shall serve a two-year term with a maximum appointment of four consecutive terms on one committee.

Terms shall be staggered to ensure continuity.

No person shall be assigned concurrent membership on more than one standing committee except for Executive Committee members who may serve on the Executive Committee and one other Senate committee.

C. COMMITTEE CHAIRS

- 1. Chairs shall be members of the General Faculty.
- 2. Committee chairs shall be voting members and may be chosen from inside or outside the committees. The chair need not be an academic senator.
- 3. The Executive Committee may choose to appoint the committee chairs. If the Executive Committee chooses not to appoint a committee chair, then the chair of that committee shall be elected by a majority vote of the eligible voting members on the committee.
- 4. Committee chairs serve for one-year terms.
- 5. Each committee chair shall be responsible for reporting committee activities to the Academic Senate implementing the charges established by the Academic Senate Chair, for keeping minutes, and for making quarterly reports to the Academic Senate Chair.
- 6. The committee chair shall notify the chair of the college caucus whenever a member has not attended two consecutive meetings.
- 7. Committee chairs shall meet with the Academic Senate Chair at least annually the beginning of each academic year.

D. OPERATING PROCEDURES

Operating procedures for Academic Senate committees are as follows:

- 1. A simple majority of the voting members shall constitute a quorum for a meeting. A quorum is required to conduct business.
- 2. Chairpersons serve until the end of the academic year. In the event that a chair must miss a meeting, s/he shall appoint a substitute chair for that meeting.
- 3. Meetings shall be called at the discretion of the chair or upon the request of three members of the committee. Committees are required to meet at least once per quarter during the school year. Regular meetings shall be scheduled during normal work hours.

- 4. Notification of meetings shall be sent by the committee chair at least three working days before the meeting date. Committees may establish regular meeting times.

 Upon committee agreement, a regular meeting time shall constitute notice.
- 5. Members may not vote by proxy.
- 6. A vote by the majority of the voting members attending a meeting shall be the decision of the committee.
- Minutes shall be kept for each meeting and a copy transmitted to the Academic Senate office.
- Special rules and procedures must be approved by the Executive Committee, included in the committee's description, and on file with the Academic Senate office.

E. MEETINGS

Meetings of all committees except those dealing with personnel matters of individuals shall be open. The time and place of each meeting shall be announced in advance.

F. REPORTING

Each committee shall maintain a written record of its deliberations. A summary report shall be submitted to the Academic Senate office at the end of the academic year.

G. MINORITY REPORTS

Minority reports may be submitted with the reports of the committees.

H. COMMITTEES

- 1. Budget and Long-Range Planning
- 2. Curriculum (and its subcommittee: U.S. Cultural Pluralism Subcommittee)
- 3. Distinguished Scholarship Awards
- 4. Distinguished Teaching Awards
- 5. Faculty Affairs
- 6. Fairness Board
- 7. Grants Review
- 8. Instruction
- 9. Library
- 10. Research and Professional Development
- 11. Sustainability

I. COMMITTEE DESCRIPTIONS

1. Budget and Long-Range Planning Committee

a. Membership

Ex officio members shall be the Provost/Vice President for Academic Affairs or designee, the Budget Officer or designee, the Vice President for Administration and Finance or designee, and an ASI representative.

b. Responsibilities

- (1) The Budget and Long-Range Planning Committee shall provide oversight and make recommendations concerning policy for the allocation of budgeted resources. This includes the review of matters related to the allocation of budgeted resources and representation on bodies formed to review the mechanisms by which campuswide resource allocations are made.
- (2) In addition, the Budget and Long-Range Planning Committee shall also develop recommendations concerning future actions, policies, and goals of the University. Areas assigned to specific standing committees of the Academic Senate fall within its purview when future predictions and extreme long-range planning are necessary or possible.

2. Curriculum Committee

a. Membership

General Faculty from colleges College representatives shall be either (1) the current chair of their college curriculum committee or (2) a current member of their college curriculum committee. The Professional Consultative Services representative shall be an academic advisor from one of the colleges. Ex officio members shall be the Provost/Vice President for Academic Affairs or designee, the Dean of Research and Graduate Programs or designee, the Dean of Library Services or designee, a representative from Academic Records, and an ASI representative.

b. Responsibilities

The Curriculum Committee evaluates curriculum proposals from departments and colleges before making recommendations to the Academic Senate. In addition, the committee makes shall develop recommendations regarding academic master planning and curriculum, academic programs, to the Senate on University requirements for graduation, general education, learning objectives, and cultural pluralism; provides library oversight as it relates to instruction curriculum; and addresses any other curriculum-related matter referred to it by the Senate, Senate chair, or Executive Committee. Members will meet at least quarterly and as needed. The chair of the Curriculum Committee shall be responsible for the coordination of the curriculum review with the Provost/Vice President for Academic Affairs office Academic Programs.

The chair of the Curriculum Committee shall meet regularly with the chair of the Instruction Committee and the Chair of the Academic Senate.

U.S. Cultural Pluralism Subcommittee

There will be a standing subcommittee of the Curriculum Committee that is responsible for the initial review of courses proposed to fulfill the Cultural Pluralism baccalaureate requirement. This subcommittee shall consist of one General Faculty representative from each college and

Professional Consultative Services. Terms shall be for two years, staggered to ensure continuity.

Academic Senate caucuses will solicit and receive applications for membership. The slate of applicants will be forwarded to the Curriculum Committee who will appoint members.

A chair of this subcommittee will be elected from the subcommittee members each academic year.

Ex officio members shall be the department chair of Ethnic Studies, the department chair of Women's Studies, a representative from both the Director of the General Education Program, and a Curriculum Committee representative, and an ASI representative.

Selection of courses to fulfill the requirement shall follow the criteria listed in Academic Senate resolution number AS-395-92.

Recommendations from this subcommittee will be forwarded to the Curriculum Committee which will, in turn, submit them to the Academic Senate for a vote.

3. <u>Distinguished Scholarship Awards Committee</u>

a. Membership

General Faculty representatives should include former recipients of the Distinguished Scholarship Award. Ex officio members shall be the Dean of Research and Graduate Programs who shall also serve as the designee of the Provost/Vice President for Academic Affairs and two ASI representatives—one undergraduate and one graduate student.

b. Responsibilities

The Distinguished Scholarship Awards Committee shall conduct the selection process and determine the policies and procedures to be used in accordance with the special rules and procedures approved by the Executive Committee for judging potential candidates for the Distinguished Scholarship Award.

4. <u>Distinguished Teaching Awards Committee</u>

a. Membership

The Distinguished Teaching Award Committee shall be composed of five General Faculty members from different colleges, when possible, and two students. The faculty members will be appointed by the Chair of the Academic Senate with the approval of the Executive Committee. These faculty members will be representatives should include former recipients of the Distinguished Teaching Award and will serve two year staggered terms. Colleges not represented during a term of membership will be rotated onto the committee when a member needs to be replaced. The students will be appointed by ASI, Ex officio members shall be two ASI representatives. These will have at least junior standing and will have completed at least three consecutive quarters and 36 quarter units at Cal Poly with at least a 3.0 grade point average.

b. Responsibilities

The Distinguished Teaching Awards Committee shall conduct the selection process and determine the policies and procedures to be used for judging potential candidates for the Distinguished Teaching Award. Nominations for the award will be received by the committee during fall quarter and final selection will be made no later than the sixth week of spring quarter. The Distinguished Teaching Awards Committee shall conduct the selection process in accordance with the special rules and procedures approved by the Executive Committee for judging potential candidates for the Distinguished Teaching Award.

5. Faculty Affairs Committee

a. Membership

Ex officio members of the Faculty Affairs Committee shall be the Associate Vice President for Academic Personnel or designee and an ASI representative.

b. Responsibilities

The Faculty Affairs Committee shall be the advisory body of the Academic Senate on faculty policy and its administration and procedures. The scope of faculty procedures and policies coming within its purview includes standards and criteria concerning appointment, promotion, tenure, academic freedom, leaves of absence, retention, professional relations and ethics, research, grievance, layoff procedures, and lecturers' rights and responsibilities.

6. Fairness Board

a. Membership

Ex officio members are the Vice President for Student Affairs or designee and two ASI representatives with no less than junior standing and three consecutive quarters of attendance at Cal Poly preceding appointment.

b. Responsibilities

The procedures to be followed and the problems to be considered shall be approved by the Academic Senate and published as a document entitled *Fairness Board Description and Procedures*. The Board shall report to the Provost and Academic Senate Chair.

7. Grants Review

a. Membership

- (1) Pursuant to the Chancellor's Office guidelines for the State
 Faculty Support Grants (SFSG), [AA-2006-25], a majority of
 the membership shall consist of elected faculty members elected
 by the probationary and tenured faculty. They shall be elected as
 follows:
 - (a) one member shall be elected from each college and Professional Consultative Services by faculty unit

employees from that college and Professional Consultative Services, respectively.

- (b) membership shall be for two year terms, with the terms of service staggered between the various colleges and Professional Consultative Services.
- (2) Ex officio members shall be the Dean of Research and Graduate Programs or designee, an instructional dean or designee, the Foundation Executive Director or designee, and an ASI representative. Pursuant to the Chancellor's Office guidelines for the State Faculty Support Grants (SFSG), tThe ASI representative must be a graduate student. The representative of the instructional deans shall be appointed by the Provost/Vice President for Academic Affairs for a two year repeatable term. Ex officio members shall be nonvoting members of this committee.
- (3) The chair of the Grants Review Committee shall be elected from the elected faculty members of the committee.
- (4) (3) No member of the Grants Review Committee is eligible to apply for any grant, leave, or award program administered by the committee while serving on the committee.

b. Responsibilities

- (1) In coordination with the Research and Professional Development Committee, the Grants Review Committee shall develop and recommend policies and procedures for the review of grant proposals referred to it, including the State Faculty Support Grants (SFSG).
- (2) Solicit, receive, and evaluate requests for State Faculty Support Grants and make recommendations for funding, when appropriate, to the Dean for Research and Graduate Programs.
- (3) Make recommendations concerning the funding of other internal grants when appropriate.
- (4) Evaluate requests for special leaves for research or creative activity and, when appropriate, rank order them for consideration and transmit this ranking through the Academic Senate Chair to the President.

8. <u>Instruction Committee</u>

a. Membership

Ex officio members shall be the Provost/Vice President for Academic Affairs or designee, the Vice Provost for Information Technology Services or designee, the Dean of Library Services or designee, a representative from Academic Records, and an ASI representative.

b. Responsibilities

The Instruction Committee shall be responsible for recommendations regarding subjects that impinge directly on the quality of teaching and for

providing policy recommendations concerning grading as well as admissions policies and requirements. It will also provide review and input concerning electronic teaching techniques.

In accordance with CAM 481 and AS-357-91/IC, the Instruction Committee shall review the Academic Calendar as proposed by the Provost/Vice President for Academic Affairs before its final submission to the President for approval.

The chair of the Instruction Committee shall meet regularly with the chair of the Curriculum Committee and the Chair of the Academic Senate.

9. Library Committee

a. Membership

Ex officio members shall be the Dean of Library Services, the Provost/Vice President for Academic Affairs or designee, two undergraduate students, two graduate students, a staff representative at large, and a representative from the Instructional Advisory Committee on Computing (IACC). In addition, the Library Committee shall provide a representative to the IACC.

b. Responsibilities

The duties of the Library Committee are threefold:

- (1) To actively monitor campus concerns about University library resources, policies, and services;
- (2) To work with the Dean of the Library in developing library policies which meet the needs of faculty, staff, and students; and
- (3) To advise and consult with University administration about: (a) the state of the library's resources, services, and policies, and (b) the University commitment necessary to assure that the library adequately serves the teaching, research, and public service missions of the University.

10. Research and Professional Development Committee

a. Membership

Ex officio members shall be the Dean of Research and Graduate Programs or designee, an instructional dean or designee, the Vice President for Administration and Finance or designee, the Foundation Executive Director or designee, and an ASI representative. The representative of the instructional deans shall be appointed by the Provost/President for Academic Affairs for a two year repeatable term. Ex officio members shall be nonvoting members of this committee.

b. Responsibilities

The Research and Professional Development Committee shall:

(1) Make recommendations eoneerning on University policies and procedures for research and professional development activities on campus regarding scholarship.

- (2) Provide advice and guidance related to research and professional development to the following regarding scholarship to the following:
 - (a) Kennedy Library
 - (b) Information Technology Services
 - (c) Cal Poly Technology Park
 - (d) University committees
 - (e) campus research centers and institutes

11. Sustainability Committee

a. Membership

Ex officio members shall be the Vice Provost for Strategic Initiatives and Planning or designee, the Vice Provost for Academic Programs and Undergraduate Education or designee, the Director of Facilities Planning, the Manager of Engineering and Utilities, one academic dean, and two ASI representatives.

b. Responsibilities

The Sustainability Committee shall inform and support the activities of other committees whose scope encompasses environmental responsibility. The Sustainability Committee shall make recommendations to the Academic Senate, as appropriate, regarding the provisions of the Talloires Declaration.

IX. RECALL OF ELECTED REPRESENTATIVES

A. APPLICATION

The procedures for recall shall apply to:

- 1. Elected members of the Academic Senate, California Polytechnic State University;
- 2. Officers of the Academic Senate, California Polytechnic State University;
- 3. Elected representatives to the Academic Senate, California State University; and
- 4. Members to the Grants Review Committee.

B. PROCEDURES

An election for recall of elected representatives as specified in Article II, Sections 1 and 3 of the constitution, may be instituted by a petition of those eligible to vote in the election for the representatives in the various categories provided the following provisions are met:

1. An individual eligible to vote in the election for the representative shall notify the Academic Senate Chair of her/his intention to circulate a recall petition. This written notification shall state further the reasons for the recall action in brief terms.

- 2. The Academic Senate Chair shall notify all of the eligible voters in the area affected of the intended recall petition and state the reasons given for the petition to recall.
- 3. The notification will be in effect five (5) days in which classes are in session prior to the circulation of the petition. Signatures on a petition may be obtained for the next ten (10) days in which regular classes are in session. A recall election, if required, shall be initiated within twenty (20) days, in which classes are regularly in session, after the recall notification is received by the Academic Senate Chair.
- 4. The recall petition will be circulated by those initiating the recall action. The top of each sheet heading a list of signatures for recall action shall contain a statement of the reasons for recall.
- 5. The dated signatures of at least 20% of those eligible to vote in the area represented by the incumbent as specified in the constitution and bylaws of the Academic Senate, California Polytechnic State University, San Luis Obispo, or the *Constitution and Bylaws of the Academic Senate CSU*, shall be required to initiate a recall election.
- 6. If the petition is for the recall of a member or an officer of the Academic Senate, California Polytechnic State University, San Luis Obispo, a member of the Grants Review Committee, or a CSU academic senator, the Academic Senate office shall conduct the balloting in these elections.

7.	The recall ballot shall be w	orded so that it can be answered	i "yes" or "no."
	(name)	shall be recalled from the _	(category of
	elected representative)	The reasons stated in the	petition are as follows
		Yes	No

- 8. A majority vote of those eligible to vote and voting will be sufficient to recall the incumbent.
- 9. If the incumbent is recalled, nominees will be solicited for ten (10) days in which regular classes are in session from the area where the vacancy now exists.
- 10. After nominees have been received, the Academic Senate Chair shall notify all of the faculty members of the college or area affected of the nominees and of the time and place of the election to fill the vacancy created by the recall.
- 11. The election procedures and ballot counting shall be as provided in these bylaws for regular elections.

X. AMENDMENTS TO THE BYLAWS

These bylaws may be amended by a two thirds majority vote of the senators present at a regular meeting of the Academic Senate, providing that a first reading of the proposed amendment has taken place at the previous regular meeting of the Academic Senate.

Additional bylaw changes to be considered with the "Resolution on Changes to the *Bylaws of the Academic Senate*" (see Business Item C above)

- 1. Should the Executive Committee have discretion to waive the bylaws requirement of "no person shall be assigned concurrent membership on more than one standing committee"? (p. 13, last paragraph of Section VIII.B)
- 2. Should the Executive Committee be charged with discretionary review of Academic Senate CSU nominations prior to the campus election? (p. 12, VII.B)
- 3. Should a Statement of Interest be required for faculty members submitting a petition for election to the Academic Senate CSU? (p. 8, III.B.6 and p. 12, VII.B.5)
- 4. Should ex officio committee membership be changed from "voting" to "nonvoting" status? (top of p. 13, VIII.B)
- 5. Should procedures for first and second readings of resolutions be added to the bylaws? (see attached examples for wording)
- 6. Should the position of Academic Senate Chair be excluded from the term-ending requirement of "A senator can serve a maximum of two [two-year] consecutive, elected terms and shall not again be eligible for election until one year has elapsed"? (p. 6, II.B)
- 7. Is it helpful to have specific requirements for the student representatives to the Distinguished Teaching Awards Committee ("junior standing...36 quarter units...3.0 gpa") or should student requirements be standardized for all Senate committees (minimum of 2.3 GPA)? (p. 4, I.B.2 and p. 16, I.4)
- 8. Should student membership be standardized; i.e., one student on each Senate committee? (Presently the DSA, DTA, Fairness Board, and Sustainability Committees have two student representatives.)

- 9. Should the two ASI representatives to the Academic Senate also be voting members of the Executive Committee?
- 10. Should a process for censure and possible involuntary resignation of a senator/statewide senator be established?
- 11. Should a resolution originating outside an Academic Senate committee be sent to a Senate committee prior to agendizing as a matter of due process?
- 12. Should a section be added to the bylaws describing the duties of caucus chairs and indicating how they are (s)elected?
- 13. (Discussion) inclusion of Brown Act provisions.

RESOLUTION PROCESS

- Usually proposed by Senate committee.
- > Reviewed and formatted by Senate Analyst.
- > Screened by Executive Committee, which may "agendize."
- Read twice by Senate, which may amend and adopt.
- > Forwarded to President, who may accept, approve, or disapprove.

FIRST READING

- A time for suggestions; resolution still belongs to author and is not yet amendable.
- Resolution may be moved to second reading at another meeting.
- Motion to suspend rules may be used to move time-sensitive resolutions to second reading at same meeting.

SECOND READING

- Motion to adopt resolution may be moved and seconded; it then belongs to the body and may be amended.
- > Precedent: attached documents are not amendable.
- New rule: amendments of one sentence or more must be made in writing and submitted to the Senate in advance.

Language from the bylaws of CSU San Francisco

- 5. First reading: Voting on substantive motions (i.e., those involving university policy, those in which the senate takes a position on an issue, and the like) takes place in two stages: first reading and second reading. In first reading, the motion is introduced and seconded. Discussion is in order in first reading, but not amendments. The first reading of a motion is concluded if 1) there is no one remaining the speakers' list who wishes to speak on it, or 2) a motion to close debate is passed (requires a two-thirds vote), or 3) a motion is approved to move the motion to second reading (requires a three-fourths majority).
- 6. Second reading: Voting on substantive motions shall take place only after a second reading of the motion at a meeting subsequent to the meeting at which it was first introduced, except that the Academic Senate, by three-fourths vote of the senators present, may waive this requirement. During second reading, amendments may be presented for action by the senate.

COMPARISON OF AC	ADE	MIC	SI	ENA	TE	MEI	ИΒІ	ERS	SHI	PS	AM	ON	GS	ΤA	LL	23	CSI	J C	AM	PU	SE	S (2.20.08)	
CAMPUS	Acad	Facily	in Ser	enator enator	ide Fac	July Part	dinef	aculty	dent of Pas	Server Server	of S Rechide	senative sity	Presid	Provident S	udent udent	Affairs gants Jents Unit	Vice	President Programme of the Control o	ants alaca Repr	d Affe	atives acute	A Pres Chrs	
CSU BAKERSFIELD	AS	25	10	7	•	•	~	-5	1	2	~	1	~	4	9	v	٧-	9	V		U	U	cont'd>
CSU CHANNEL ISLANDS	AS	85	81		2		1	ř	i i	_	ĺ		ſ	-7	4	I	1					1	
CSU CHICO	AS	43	24	5			1	1		2	1	1			2	3		1	4	1			cont'd>
CSU DOMINQUEZ HILLS	AS	40	38	J			1	1	1				1	1			ľ	1	1	1			cont'd>
CSU EAST BAY	AS	59	24	10	4		1	2	1	2	1				7			1	1			5	cont'd>
CSU FRESNO	AS	75	58	10			1	4		4	1	1		1	2		1	<u> </u>	•			3	cont'd>
CSU FULLERTON	AS	45	17	15		2	1	4		3	1	1	1	1	2	-			1			3	cont'd>
HUMBOLDT ST UNIV	AS	40	22		1	_	1	1	1	2	1				4	4		1	1		1		cont'd>
CSU LONG BEACH	AS	83	48				1	3	E. I	3	1	1		9	5	6		5	1		•		cont'd>
CSU LOS ANGELES	AS	62	35	5			1		1	2	1			6	5	5	1		1				cont'd>
CALIF MARITIME ACADEMY	AS	104	72		27	•			4		1			-			1	-					cont'd>
CSU MONTEREY BAY	AS																						cont'd>
CSU NORTHRIDGE	FS	74	35	12	3	7	2		1	3					1		f		1			9	cont'd>
CSPU POMONA	AS	39	35							2					1			1					cont'd>
CSU SACRAMENTO	FS	74	55			4	1	2	3	4							V		1			4	cont'd>
CSU SAN BERNARDINO	FS	35	27				2	1		2	1	1			1								cont'd>
SAN DIEGO ST UNIV	US	84	57	2	3		2	10		3	1	1		3	4	2	***	4	1		1		cont'd>
SAN FRANCISCO ST UNIV	AS	74	38	10	9		2	2		3	1	1		2	3	2		1					cont'd>
SAN JOSE ST UNIV	AS	54	28	1	4		1	1		3	1	1		4	6	3	2		1	- "			cont'd>
CAL POLY SLO	AS	56	38		1	- 1	J	-1	1	2	1	-1	1	1	2					U.			cont'd ->
CSU SAN MARCOS	AS	82	53				1	1	1	2	1	1		5	1	3	4	1			1	9	cont'd>
SONOMA ST UNIV	AS	47	29		3		1	1	1	2	1	1			3	2		1				4	cont'd>
CSU STANISLAUS	AS	47	32	^	1	**	1	1	4 (2		1		× .	2	1	100	1	1			4	cont'd>

Į
4
4
ï

Nonvoting: Past Chair of Senate, Provost, and college deans (administrators attend mtgs)					
Nonvoting: Univ Pres, Univ VPs, Assoc VP/AcAffs, Stud Affs rep, staff rep, tech servs					
Nonvoting: Univ Pres, Univ VPs					
Nonvoting: Univ VPs, Assoc VPs, deans, CFA Pres					
All members vote					
Nonvoting: Univ Pres, Univ Provost, Dn of Stud Affs, committee chs, substitute senators					
Voting/nonvoting status is not clear					
Nonvoting: Univ Pres, Provost, 3 VPs, CFA Pres, Student Pres, Fin Com ch, staff mbr					
Nonvoting: VPs, only 2 deans vote					
Nonvoting: the 5 VPs only					
All members vote except Univ Pres; other members may be appointed by ExecCom					
All members vote					
All members vote					
Nonvoting: statewide senators, emeriti faculty, student reps					
Nonvoting: Univ Pres and VP for Acad Affairs					
Nonvoting: CFA Pres only					
Voting/nonvoting status is not clear					
All members vote except 1 honorary senator					
Nonvoting: Univ Pres, Provost, Dean, and students					
Nonvoting: Univ Pres, Provost, VPs, Assoc VPs, CFA rep, Past Chair of Senate					
Nonvoting: Univ Pres, students, Provost, VP, staff rep					
All members vote					

COLLEGE COUNCILS

(January 2008)

Agriculture

CAFES College Council meets for two hours each Tuesday morning. It is attended by dept chairs/heads, associate deans, certain staff members (head of the farm, etc), and a few others, but I am not sure who. I was invited to attend as caucus chair under a previous dean, and while not specifically invited now, I could probably attend if I asked. I am welcome at any time there is something from the Senate.

Agenda is items from the Deans Council and anything else of interest--budgets, recruitment, fund raising, college events, industry and alumni matters, etc.

Architecture

CAED has a manager's meeting every other Tuesday which includes the dean, associate dean, department chairs/heads, and dean's staff. An attempt has been made to include the caucus chair, but only one invitation has been extended.

Business

The OCOB has semi regular meetings of the area chairs and the two associate deans.

The agenda varies, but it includes strategic initiatives, reports from the various committees in the OCOB, etc. It also deals with our Faculty Annual Report issues, accreditation issues, etc. I was on this committee a few years ago under a different dean. I have heard that the meetings are somewhat different now, but the items I have listed above are pretty accurate.

Education

The COE does not have a College Council per se. We do have an Executive Committee that consists of administrative and instructional personnel.

The ExCo is driven by the dean and addresses policy and administrative issues. There is a larger group (an extension of the ExCo) that includes more academic personnel. The ExCo meets regularly at the pleasure of the dean. Strategic planning, accreditation, and budget occupy most of the agendas.

Engineering

Who attends meetings? Department chairs and guests, including the Senate caucus chair, Career Services, Counseling Services, and administrative members on the Dean's staff.

What is on the agenda? Varies, but guests each give brief reports/announcements and the dean occasionally has announcements.

Liberal Arts

The College of Liberal Arts College Council consists of department and program (e.g., Humanities and Women's Studies) chairs/heads. The college's Director of Advancement, Eileen Joseph, and Director of Communication, Steve Davis, also attend meetings. Meetings are every other Tuesday at 8:30am.

The agenda varies but typically has reports about the Deans Council, Advancement, and Communications, as well as other relevant business.

Library

The Chair oversees and leads the Council in its official charge: Promote library faculty effectiveness and uphold professional standards to meet library users' needs; demonstrate the library's value to the campus; advise, respond, and work in concert with the Dean of Library Services and the Leadership Team to meet the overall goals and objectives of the Kennedy Library and Cal Poly; determine policies and procedures for Library faculty appointment, retention, promotion, tenure, and post-tenure review; and recommend library policies and procedures to the Dean. All library faculty attend – the Dean is an ex officio member. We generally meet once each month.

Agendas are created by the executive committee. Agendas focus on a wide range of RPT and governance issues including: revisions of handbook and bylaws; recruitments; etc.

Science and Mathematics

CSM does have a college council? They are attended by the dean, assistant dean, chairs, the college budget staff member, the college personnel staff member, and Sue Elrod who essentially heads up a cross-disciplinary center for science education housed in the college.

The dean sets the agenda. My understanding (being a non-attendee) is that it is typically about budgets, enrollment and announcement-type communications.

ACADEMIC SENATE COMMITTEES ON THE 23 CSU CAMPUSES

BAKERSFIELD

- 1. Academic Affairs
- 2. Academic Support and Student Services
- 3. Budget and Planning
- 4. Elections
- 5. Faculty Affairs
- 6. Public Affairs

CHANNEL ISLANDS

Senate Standing Committees

- 1. Centers and Institutes
- 2. Committee on Committees
- 3. Curriculum
- 4. Faculty Affairs
- 5. Fiscal Policies
- 6. General Education
- 7. Strategic and Tactical Planning
- 8. Student Academic Policies and Procedures
- 9. Academic Program Review

Senate Advisory Committees

- 1. Center for International Affairs
- 2. Extended Education
- 3. Faculty Development
- 4. Library
- 5. Office of Research and Sponsored Programs
- 6. Technology

Senate Cross-Divisional Committee

Student Affairs Liaison

CHICO

- 1. Educational Policies and Programs
- 2. Faculty and Student Policies

DOMINGUEZ HILLS

- 1. Budget and Resource
- 2. Educational Policies
- 3. Faculty Policies

EAST BAY

- Academic Planning and Review
- 2. Budget and Resource Allocation
- 3. Faculty Affairs
- 4. Graduate Programs Subcommittee (a subcommittee of Instruction and Curriculum)
- 5. Instruction and Curriculum
- 6. Research

FRESNO

- 1. Academic Policy and Planning
- 2. Budget, University
- 3. Faculty Equity and Diversity
- 4. General Education
- 5. Graduate
- 6. Nominating/Elections
- 7. Personnel
- 8. Student Affairs

FULLERTON

- 1. Academic Standards
- 2. Campus Facilities and Beautification
- 3. Curriculum
- 4. Elections
- 5. Extended Education
- 6. Faculty Affairs
- 7. Faculty Development Center Board
- 8. Faculty Personnel
- 9. General Education
- 10. Graduate Education
- 11. Information Technology
- 12. International Education
- 13. Internships and Service Learning
- 14. Library
- 15. Planning, Resource, and Budget
- 16. Professional Leaves
- 17. Research
- 18. Student Academic Life
- 19. University Advancement

HUMBOLDT

- 1. Educational Policies
- 2. Faculty Affairs
- 3. Faculty Awards
- 4. Finance
- 5. Senate Appointments
- 6. Student Affairs

LONG BEACH

- 1. Academic Appeals
- 2. Athletics
- 3. Campus Climate
- 4. Curriculum and Educational Policies
- 5. Emergency
- 6. Faculty Personnel Policies
- 7. General Education
- 8. Grade Appeals
- 9. Graduate Writing Assessment Requirement
- 10. International Education
- 11. Nominating
- 12. Program Assessment and Review
- 13. Scholarly and Creative Activity
- 14. Teacher Preparation
- 15. University Awards
- 16. University Library
- 17. University Resources

LOS ANGELES

- Awards and Leaves
- 2. Educational Policy (its subcommittees are: Academic Advisement, Academic Information Resources, Curriculum, General Education, Library, Program Review)
- 3. External Awards Nominating
- 4. Faculty Policy
- 5. Fiscal Policy
- 6. Institutional Animal Care and Uses
- 7. Institutional Review Board, Human Subjects
- 8. Nominations
 - (CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE)

- 9. Outstanding Professor Awards Selection
- 10. Student Policy
- 11. University Invention and Patent Evaluation
- 12. University Sabbatical Leave

CALIFORNIA MARITIME ACADEMY

- 1. Academic Integrity
- 2. Budget
- 3. Curriculum
- 4. Faculty Development
- 5. Appointment, Retention, Tenure and Promotion
- 6. Cruise Coordination
- 7. Library
- 8. Judicial
- 9. Graduate Awards
- 10. Professional Leave
- 11. Policy, Procedure, and Position Statement

MONTEREY BAY

- 1. Appeals and Grievances
- 2. Budget and Resource Management
- 3. Educational Planning and Policy
- 4. Faculty Affairs
- 5. Postgraduate Studies and Research
- 6. Student Affairs and Academic Support
- 7. Technology
- 8. Undergraduate Studies
- 9. University Learning Requirements Policy

NORTHRIDGE

- 1. Academic Technology
- 2. Calendar
- 3. Committee on Committees
- 4. Educational Equity
- 5. Educational Policies
- 6. Educational Resources
- 7. Election
- 8. Extended Learning
- 9. Graduate Studies
- 10. Learning Resource Advisory
- 11. Library
- 12. Personnel Planning and Review
- 13. Policy Review
- 14. Research and Grants

POMONA

- 1. Academic Affairs
- 2. Academic Programs
- 3. Elections and Procedures
- 4. Faculty Affairs
- 5. General Education
- 6. Technology

SACRAMENTO

- 1. Academic Information Technology
- 2. Academic Policies (its subcommittees are: Academic Standards, Readmission)
- 3. Committee on Committees
- 4. Curriculum Policies (its subcommittees are: Council on the Preparation of School Personnel, Curriculum Policies, Program Reviews)
- Diversity and Equity
- 6. Elections
- 7. Faculty Endowment for Student Scholarships
- 8. Faculty Policies (its subcommittees are: Center for Teaching and Learning, Pedagogy Enhancement, Research and Creative Activities, Visiting Scholars, Wang Family Excellence Awards
- General Education Policies/Graduation Requirements (its subcommittee is: General Education Course Review)
- 10. Judicial Review Board
- 11. Livingston Annual Faculty Address
- 12. University Appointment, Retention, Tenure and Promotion

SAN BERNARDINO

- 1. Curriculum
- Educational Policy and Resources
- 3. Elections
- 4. Faculty Affairs
- 5. General Education
- 6. Library

Special committees are formed as needed. These include: Information Resources & Technology, Critical Thinking Oversight, University Evaluation, Faculty Professional Development Coordinating, Honorary Degrees, Honors, Institutional Review Board, Instructional Quality, Outstanding Professor Selection, Student Grade Appeals Panel

SAN DIEGO

- 1. Academic Policy and Planning
- 2. Academic Resources and Planning
- 3. Committee on Committees (its subcommittee is: Elections Subcommittee)
- 4. Constitution and Bylaws
- 5. Diversity, Equity, and Outreach
- 6. Faculty Affairs
- 7. Undergraduate Curriculum Committee

SAN FRANCISCO

- Academic Policies
- 2. Academic Program Review
- 3. Committee on Committees
- 4. Curriculum Review and Approval
- 5. Educational Policies Council
- 6. Elections
- 7. Faculty Affairs
- Student Affairs

SAN JOSE

- 1. Committee on Committees
- 2. Curriculum and Research
- 3. Distinguished Service Award Selection
- 4. Instruction and Student Affairs
- 5. Organization and Government
- 6. Outstanding Lecturer Award Selection
- 7. Outstanding Professor Award
- 8. President's Scholar Award Selection
- 9. Professional Standards

SAN LUIS OBISPO

- 1. Budget and Long-Range Planning
- 2. Curriculum
- 3. Distinguished Scholarship Awards
- 4. Distinguished Teaching Awards
- 5. Faculty Affairs
- 6. Fairness Board
- 7. Grants Review
- 8. Instruction
- 9. Library
- 10. Research and Professional Development
- 11. Sustainability

SAN MARCOS

- 1. Academic Policy
- 2. Budget and Long-Range Planning
- 3. Faculty Affairs
- 4. General Education
- 5. Library and Academic Technology Advisory
- 6. Nominations, Elections, Appointments, and Constitution
- 7. Program Assessment
- 8. Promotion and Tenure
- 9. Student Affairs
- 10. University Curriculum

SONOMA

- 1. Academic Planning
- 2. Educational Policies
- 3. Faculty Standards and Affairs
- 4. Student Affairs

STANISLAUS

- 1. Committee on Committees
- 2. Faculty Affairs
- 3. Faculty Budget Advisory
- 4. Faculty Development
- 5. Graduate Council
- 6. Leaves and Awards
- 7. Research, Scholarship, and Creative Activity Policy
- 8. University Educational Policies
- 9. University Retention, Promotion and Tenure